East Bay Regional Communications System Authority 1 Adopted Bylaws Amended by Reso No 08-14, 11/21/08 Amended by Reso No 09-03, 02/20/09 Amended by Reso No 10-08, 06/18/10 Amended by Reso No 11-19, 10/21/11

BYLAWS

EAST BAY REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM AUTHORITY

The East Bay Regional Communications System Authority (hereafter the "Authority") is a cooperative agency voluntarily established by its members pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the Government Code of the State of California, for the purpose of acquiring, planning, designing, constructing, operating and maintaining a P25 compliant or equivalent communications system serving Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and their individual political jurisdictions.

Pursuant to Section <u>11</u> of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for the Authority (hereafter the "Agreement") dated September 11, 2007, by and between the following members:

Alameda County, Contra Costa County, Alameda, Albany, Dublin, Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, Livermore, Newark, Pleasanton, San Leandro, Union City, Brentwood, Clayton, Concord, Danville, El Cerrito, Hercules, Martinez, Moraga, Oakley, Pittsburg, Pinole, Pleasant Hill, Richmond, San Pablo, San Ramon, Walnut Creek, Kensington Police Community Services District, San Ramon Valley Fire Protection District, Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District, East Bay Regional Parks District

These By-Laws were adopted by the Board of Directors for the Authority by: Resolution No. 07-5 adopted on December 7, 2007

Article I: Definitions

- A. "Agreement" shall mean the Joint Powers Authority agreement
- B. "Board" shall mean the 23 member Board of Directors
- C. **"Operations Committee"** shall mean the Operations Committee identified in Section 8.1 of the Bylaws
- D. **"Finance Committee"** shall mean the Finance Committee identified in Section 8.1 of the Bylaws
- E. "Quorum" shall mean a majority of the Board Members (12)
- F. **"Technical Advisory Committee"** shall mean the Technical Advisory Committee identified in Article VIII, Section 8.1 of the Bylaws

Article II: Principal Office

<u>Section 2.1</u>. The principal office for the transaction of business of the Authority is hereby fixed and located at:

East Bay Regional Communications System Authority 2 Adopted Bylaws Amended by Reso No 08-14, 11/21/08 Amended by Reso No 09-03, 02/20/09 Amended by Reso No 10-08, 06/18/10 Amended by Reso No 11-19, 10/21/11

Alameda County Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Services 4985 Broder Blvd. Dublin CA. 94568

Article III: Notice

Section 3.1. Notice from one member agency to another shall be given as provided in Section <u>16</u> of the Agreement. Member agencies may change the address to which notices shall be sent by giving notice of such change to all other member agencies at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such change.

Article IV: Board of Directors

<u>Section 4.1</u>. The Authority shall be governed by a Board of Directors (hereafter the "Board") consisting of twenty-three (23) Directors. Each Director shall have an alternate that will be appointed by their representative organization. Alternates, once selected, can serve to fill any vacancy of a Director for their represented organization/county. Directors and their alternates shall, at the time of their appointment and for the duration of their service on the Board, be employees or officers of their member agencies. Alternates shall serve as Directors in the absence of their respective Directors and shall exercise all duties and responsibilities thereof. Each Director and each alternate shall serve at the pleasure of the appointing entity and may be removed by the appointing entity at any time without notice.

<u>Section 4.2</u>. The Directors shall represent the entities and be appointed as set forth in Section $\underline{6a}$ of the Agreement.

<u>Section 4.3</u>. A resignation of a Director or alternate shall be in writing and filed with the East Bay Regional Communications System Executive Director.

<u>Section 4.4.</u> The alternate may not participate and/or vote at a meeting attended by the appointed Board member.

<u>Section 4.5.</u> Directors and alternates are the only ones eligible to represent their Board position including participation and voting at the Board of Directors meetings.

<u>Section 4.6</u>. Director and alternate vacancies shall be timely filled by the applicable appointing entity, and officer vacancies shall be timely filled by the applicable electing or appointing entity.

East Bay Regional Communications System Authority Adopted Bylaws Amended by Reso No 08-14, 11/21/08 Amended by Reso No 09-03, 02/20/09 Amended by Reso No 10-08, 06/18/10 Amended by Reso No 11-19, 10/21/11

Article V: Presiding Officers

<u>Section 5.1</u>. The officers shall be a Chair, and Vice-Chair. The duties, and term, as applicable, are as set forth in Section 6 Administration c. Procedures (*Procedures.(1) The Board shall elect annually a Chair from among its membership to preside at meetings and shall select a Secretary who may, but need not, be a Director. The Board may, from time to time, elect such other officers as the Board shall deem necessary or convenient to conduct the affairs of the Authority.*) of the Agreement. In the absence of the Chair, the Board shall be presided over by the Vice-Chair, who shall be elected annually from among the Board's membership. The election of the Chair and Vice Chair will be accomplished pursuant to the process outlined in Section 5.3 of the Bylaws. The Board will appoint a Secretary as set forth 6.c of the Agreement to provide minutes of the meetings, as outlined in Section 6. Administration b. Meetings (4) ((4) Minutes. The Secretary of the Authority shall cause minutes of all meetings of the Board to be kept and shall, as soon as possible after each meeting, cause a copy of the minutes to be forwarded to each Director, the Members, and other parties upon request.) of the Agreement. The Secretary will not be a Board member.

<u>Section 5.2.</u> The positions of Chair and Vice Chair will be filled by a representative from each county. If the Chair is from Alameda County, the Vice Chair will be from Contra Costa. If the Chair is from Contra Costa, the Vice Chair will be from Alameda.

<u>Section 5.3</u> The Board of Directors will receive nominations from sitting members of the Board to fill the positions of Chair and Vice Chair at a meeting of the Board. The Board will vote on the nominations for Chair and Vice Chair following Robert's Rules of Order. The newly elected Chair and Vice Chair will assume their positions at the conclusion of the meeting, and will continue in the positions for one year.

Article VI: Meetings

<u>Section 6.1</u>. The procedures for Board meetings shall be as set forth in Section 6 Administration b. Meetings

b. Meetings.

 (1) Regular Meetings. The Board shall by resolution establish the number of regular meetings to be held each year and the date, hour and location at which such regular meetings shall be held; provided, that the Board shall meet at least once every year.
(2) Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Section 54950 et seq.).
(3) Conduct of Meetings. All meetings of the Board shall be held in accordance with the

Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Section 54950 et seq.).

(4) Minutes. The Secretary of the Authority shall cause minutes of all meetings of the Board to be kept and shall, as soon as possible after each meeting, cause a copy of the minutes to be forwarded to each Director, the Members, and other parties upon

East Bay Regional Communications System Authority A Adopted Bylaws Amended by Reso No 08-14, 11/21/08 Amended by Reso No 09-03, 02/20/09 Amended by Reso No 10-08, 06/18/10 Amended by Reso No 11-19, 10/21/11

request.

(5) Quorum. Twelve (12) Directors of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Except as provided in Section 7 below, actions of the Board shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the entire Board (i.e., twelve (12) affirmative votes). of the Agreement.

<u>Section 6.2.</u> Committee meetings will be posted on the web site and meeting notices will be sent to Board members and alternates by email.

Section 6.3. Agendas and Minutes of all meetings will be posted on the web site.

Article VII: Legal Notices

<u>Section 7.1.</u> All legal notices required by the Government Code shall be published in one or more newspapers of general circulation or posted according to state law.

Article VIII: Authority Organization

<u>Section 8.1</u>. In Section 5. Duties (f) (f. To establish within six (6) months of the execution of this Agreement ad hoc operational and technical committees as necessary to consider and recommend to the Board of Directors system implementation issues.) the Board is directed to form committees as necessary to provide recommendations and direction on issues relating to the EBRCS. In order to provide recommendations to the full Board of Directors on operational and financing issues, and provide day to day oversight, standing Operational and Finance committees will be formed as standing committees of the Board, and the committees will be required to follow the Brown Act. Agendas and minutes of the committee meetings will be made available on the web site. The committees will be made up of Board members and/or alternates, with representation and authority as listed below.

In the event that neither a Board member nor his or her designated alternate can attend a committee meeting, alternates to the Finance and Operations Committees will be selected first by discipline from Board members or alternate Board members from the appropriate county. If the Executive Director receives notice of the absence of a committee member, the Executive Director will contact Board members or alternates from the appropriate discipline or county. If no one from the discipline is able to attend, the Executive Director will contact Board members and/or alternates from the appropriate county until a replacement can be found.

Operations Committee: The Operations Committee will have 7 members and be responsible for review of system operational and technical issues including but not

East Bay Regional Communications System Authority 5 Adopted Bylaws Amended by Reso No 08-14, 11/21/08 Amended by Reso No 09-03, 02/20/09 Amended by Reso No 10-08, 06/18/10 Amended by Reso No 11-19, 10/21/11

limited to the review of existing technology, system upgrades, implementation of new technology, and provide support for the existing system implementation. The operations committee can appoint ad hoc committees when it needs to bring in additional expertise to address issues. The operations committee will also be able to approve expenditures up to \$25,000 without approval of the full Board of Directors. They will make recommendations to the Board through the Executive Director.

Operations Committee Representation:

Board Chair or Vice Chair 2 Police Chiefs (one from each county) 2 Fire Chiefs (one from each county) 2 Sheriff's (one from each county)

Finance Committee: The Finance Committee will have 8 members and be responsible for the development of a budget, and review of financing options in order to develop a financing plan. The committee will also develop recommendations for subscriber unit pricing to account for the ongoing operations, upgrades and replacement. The Finance Committee will also be able to approve expenditures up to \$25,000 without approval of the full Board of Directors. They will make recommendations to the Board on finance issues through the Executive Director.

Finance Committee Representation:

Board Chair or Vice Chair 2 City Managers (one from each county) 2 Elected Officials (one from each county) 2 County (one from each county) 1 Special District

Technical Advisory Committee: The Technical Advisory Committee will have 10 to 20 members, consisting of Fire Protection, Law Enforcement and Radio Technicians constituting balanced representation of Alameda County and Contra Costa County, and the EBRCSA Executive Director, for the purpose of providing technical expertise and advice to the Operations Committee and/or the EBRCSA Board on operational decisions to be made in connection with implementation of the EBRCSA P-25 compliant or equivalent communications system.

Article IX: Staff

East Bay Regional Communications System Authority Adopted Bylaws Amended by Reso No 08-14, 11/21/08 Amended by Reso No 09-03, 02/20/09 Amended by Reso No 10-08, 06/18/10 Amended by Reso No 11-19, 10/21/11

<u>Section 9.1</u>. There will be an Executive Director of the EBRCS who will be responsible for the general management, administration, direction and development of the Authority's operations and procedures on a daily basis, including grant applications, acquisitions of equipment, financial administration, meeting administration, recordkeeping, all facilities, employees, consultants, and their respective uses.

<u>Section 9.2.</u> The Executive Director will be appointed by a majority of the Board of Directors and may be removed by a majority of the Board of Directors.

<u>Section 9.3.</u> The Executive Director working through designated member agencies shall be responsible for employment practices, and the administration of all approved policies regarding employee compensation, leave, and other personnel matters. The Executive Director will bring to the Board a resolution adopting the personnel practices of one of the member agencies.

Section 9.4. The Executive Director, upon the approval of the Board Chair or Vice Chair, will be able to approve certain expenditures up to \$25,000 without approval of the full Board of Directors, the Operations Committee, or the Finance Committee. Any such expenditure will be reviewed at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Finance Committee.

Article X: Board Reimbursement and Compensation

<u>Section 10.1</u>. Directors and alternates representing the authority shall receive reimbursement for any actual expenses incurred for travel directly related to the business of the authority. There will be no per diem or travel reimbursement for attending Board of Directors or committee meetings. The Board will adopt the reimbursement policies of Alameda County.

Article XI: Finances

<u>Section 11.1</u>. The financial system of the Authority shall be kept under the provisions as specified in California Government Code Sections 6505 and 6505.5.

<u>Section 11.2</u>. The budget shall be adopted as set forth in Section 6. Administration d.Fiscal Matters (4) Budget ((4) Budget. The Board shall adopt a budget no later than one hundred twenty (120) days after the first meeting of the Board and no later than June 30th of each year thereafter.) of the Agreement.

East Bay Regional Communications System Authority 7 Adopted Bylaws Amended by Reso No 08-14, 11/21/08 Amended by Reso No 09-03, 02/20/09 Amended by Reso No 10-08, 06/18/10 Amended by Reso No 11-19, 10/21/11

<u>Section 11.3</u>. Expenditures by the Authority may not exceed the final budget without a budgetary revision approved by a 2/3 vote of the Board.

<u>Section 11.4</u>. Purchasing for the Authority shall be administered by the Executive Director, pursuant to the purchasing procedures of a charter county (Alameda County) as listed in State statute and shall be authorized by the Authority's Auditor, within budgetary amounts.

Article XII: Amendments

Section 12.1. These Bylaws may be amended from time to time by resolution of the Board. Amendments shall be ratified by a 2/3 majority of the Board of Directors.

Article XIII: Indemnification

The Joint Powers Agreement addresses indemnification in Section 9. Indemnification 9. Indemnification. The Authority shall acquire such insurance protection as is necessary to protect the interest of the Authority and its Members. The Authority shall assume the defense of and indemnify and save harmless the Members and their governing bodies, officers, agents, and employees from all claims, losses, damages, costs, injury, and liability of every kind, nature, and description directly or indirectly arising from the performance of any of the activities of the Authority or the activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.